
Māori Standing Committee 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

30 April 2024 

Agenda 

Notice of Meeting 
An ordinary meeting will be held in the Supper Room, Waihinga Centre, Texas Street, 
Martinborough on Tuesday 30 April starting at 6.00pm. This meeting will be live-
streamed and will be available to view on our YouTube channel. 

Membership of the Community Board 

Andrea Rutene (Chairperson), Karen Mikaera (Deputy Chairperson), Dorothy 
Whittaker, Violet Edwards-Hina, Leonie Edwards, Te Rina Kaiwai, JD Smith,  Whitu 
Karanua, Whitu Karauna, Mayor Martin Connelly and Councillor Pip Maynard. 

Karakia Tīmatanga 

Tukua te wairua kia rere ki ngā taumata 
Hai ārahi i ā tātou mahi 

Me tā tātou whai i ngā tikanga a rātou mā 
Kia mau kia ita 

Kia kore ai e ngaro 
Kia pupuri 

Kia whakamaua 
Kia tina! TINA! Hui e! TĀIKI E! 

1. Extraordinary Business

2. Apologies

3. Conflicts of Interest

4. Acknowledgments and Tributes

5. Public Participation

5.1 Wairarapa Whanau Trust – Tremaine Rimene-Albrett

5.2 Kuranui College Adventure Racing Team – Lisa Te 
Moananui 

5.3 Hau Ariki Marae – Prue Harawira-Smith 

1



6. Actions from Public Participation 

As per standing order 15.4 following the public forum no debate or decisions 
will be made at the meeting on issues raised during the forum unless related to 
items already on the agenda. 

7. Māori Standing Committee Minutes 

7.1 Minutes for Approval: Māori Standing Committee 
Minutes of 30 January 2023 

Pages 3 - 7  

Proposed Resolution:  That the minutes of the Māori 
Standing Committee meeting held on 30 January 2024 
be confirmed as a true and correct record. 

 

8. Chairperson Report 

8.1 Chairperson’s Report Pages 8 – 15 

9. Reports from Chief Executive and Staff 

9.1 Pou Māori Report April 2024 Pages 16 – 53 

9.2 Appointment to Assurance, Risk and Finance 
Committee 

Pages 54 – 55 

9.3 Lake Ferry Tender Information Report Page 56 

9.4 Income & Expenditure Report Pages 57 – 61 

9.5 Financial Assistance Report Pages 62 – 64 

9.6 Action Items Report Pages 65 - 67  

10. Member Reports 

10.1 None advised   

 
Karakia Whakamutunga 

Unuhia Unuhia 
Unuhia ki te uru tapu nui 

kia wāteā, kia māmā 
te ngākau, te tinana, te wairua 

i te ara takatū 
Koia rā e Rongo 

Whakairia ake ki runga 
Tūturu whakamaua kia tina. Tina! 

Hui e! Tāiki

2



DISCLAIMER 1  
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on as 
to their correctness 

 

 

 
 

MĀORI STANDING COMMITTEE 
Minutes from 30 January 2024 

 
Present: Andrea Rutene (Chairperson), Karen Mikaera (Deputy 

Chairperson), Narida Hooper, Dorothy Whittaker, Violet 
Edwards-Hina, Leonie Edwards (online), Te Rina Kaiwai, JD Smith, 
Whitu Karauna (online), Mayor Martin Connelly and Councillor 
Pip Maynard 

In Attendance: 

 

Leanne Karauna (Principal Advisor Māori), Amanda Bradley (GM, 
Policy and Governance), Nicki Ansell (Lead Policy Advisor), Robyn 
Ramsden (Community Governance Advisor), Cr. Rebecca Gray. 

Public 
Participation: 

Tim Smith, Greg Hay, Liz Karaitiana, Roisin Hooper (online). 

Conduct of  
Business: 

This meeting was conducted in public in the Supper Room, 
Martinborough Town Hall, Texas Street, Martinborough between 6.00 
pm and 8:08 pm and was live streamed on the Council’s YouTube 
Channel. 

 

PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Members opened with a karakia. 
 
1. EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS YouTube streaming 3:07 
 No extraordinary business.  
   
2. APOLOGIES YouTube streaming 3:17 
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC 2024/01) to receive apologies from Janice 

Smith, JD Smith. 
(Moved Mr Karauna/Seconded Ms Edwards-Hina) 

 
 
Carried 

   
3. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST YouTube streaming 4:10 
 There are no conflicts of interest.  
 ACTION 002: hold a session around conflicts of interest and 

understanding conflicts of interest at the next forum 
 

   
4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND TRIBUTES YouTube streaming 4:33 
 We acknowledge all our whanau and hope they had a good holiday 

break. 
 

   
5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION YouTube streaming 5:16 
   

3



DISCLAIMER 2  
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on as 
to their correctness 

 

 Tim Smith – Martinborough Hotel 5:24 
 Mr Smith enquired the suitability and appropriateness of using the 

name ‘Rapaki’ in relation to a development near the ‘Rapaki walk’ in 
Martinborough near the Dublin Street & Shooting Butts Road. 
 
Members discussed the issue and agreed he should approach the 
Marae. Engage and help Mr Smith understand the whakapapa of the 
name and land. 

 

   
 Greg Hay – Far North Solar YouTube streaming 8:19 
 Offered apologies for not coming to this Committee sooner and 

following the correct tika. Need to engage wider iwi and mana 
whenua. Mr Hay answered the Committees questions around effects 
on the whenua, life cycle of the solar panels – including recycling, 
perimeter planting around the property, sheep will continue to graze 
under the panels, the types of employment opportunities and the 
possibility of apprenticeships, the other locations consented and 
building underway, and the investment company they are partnering 
with.  
 
Members suggested people and groups for Mr Hay to get into 
contact with. Asked questions on the effects of the solar panels on 
the whenua, life cycle and recycling of the panels, local employment 
opportunities in the short and long term, about other locations built 
by Far North Solar, who they are partnering with. 

 

   
 Liz Karaitana and Mr Ray Karaitana – Korowai YouTube streaming 31:02 
 Mrs Karaitana spoke to the Committee about Parawai’s Korowai 

which she is gifting, through his family to SWDC for the purpose of 
using on special occasions like Citizenship Ceremonies, visiting marae 
and other important events. Gifting the korowai was his final wish. 
 
Members discussed the best location for the korowai, in the 
Waihinga centre. This space is gifted to Ngati Hikowera to use for 
events. They agreed on a date that it can be gifted. The display will 
need to have whakapapa also displayed so people can see the history 
for the gift. 

 

   
 Roisin Hooper – Learning Journey YouTube streaming 40:09 
 Narida tells the Committee Roisin’s back story. Great learning year 

and making beautiful friendships. 150 students in year one. Cohorts 
or Ohu. Improvement in te reo. 
 
Roisin shares with the Committee how much she learnt during the 
year and some of the ways they showed their learning. Her highlight 
was the project for Matariki where she and friends went fishing with 
her father and made a video in te reo for her assignment. She is 
looking forward to getting back into full emersion te reo. 

 

4



DISCLAIMER 3  
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on as 
to their correctness 

 

 
The members wished her luck and that she inspired them all with her 
mahi. 

   
6. ACTIONS FROM PUBLIC PARTICIPATION YouTube streaming 47:20 
 ACTION 03: decisions to be made regarding the gifting of the 

Korowai. 
 

 ACTION 04: Ask CE to get officials to provide clarity on the name 
Rapaki through purchase agreements and records from when the 
Rapaki walk was named. 

 

 ACTION 05: Te Rina follow up with Papawai regarding making contact 
with Far North Solar. 

 

   
7. MINUTES FOR CONFIRMATION YouTube streaming 52:37 
7.1 Māori Standing Committee – 10 October 2023  
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC 2024/02) that the minutes of the Māori 

Standing Committee meeting held on 10 October 2023 be confirmed 
as true and correct. 

 

 (Moved Cr. Maynard/Seconded Ms Kawai) Carried 
   
7.2 Māori Standing Committee – 7 November 2023  
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC 2024/03) that the minutes of the Māori 

Standing Committee meeting held on 7 November 2023 be confirmed 
as true and correct. 

 

 (Moved Ms Hooper/Seconded Ms Whittaker) Carried 
   
Ms Edwards left the meeting at 7:00 pm  
   
8. CHAIRPERSONS REPORT YouTube streaming 55:44 
 There was no Chairperson Report.  
   
9. REPORTS FROM CHIEFL EXECUTIVE AND STAFF  
   
9.1 Pou Māori January 2024 Report YouTube streaming 55:54 
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC2024/04) to receive the Pou Māori January 2024 

Report. 
 

 (Moved Mayor Connelly /Seconded Ms Edwards-Hina Carried 
 Ms Karauna spoke to items on her reports. Specifically mentioned: 

draft Māori Policy, Tuia applicant, Waihinga bridge name to be 
corrected, sign at Matakitaki a Kupe and vehicle access, Dr Foss 
Leach’s discussion paper and the spelling of Huaāngarua, emergency 
planning and disposal of debris, road closure under LGA and LINZ, 
campers on private land, acknowledge that behaviour change takes 
time, congratulations on establishing the Māori Ward. Need to 
progress the policy. 

 

   
9.2 Appointments to Committees Report YouTube streaming 1:07:13 
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC2024/05) to:  

5



DISCLAIMER 4  
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on as 
to their correctness 

 

1. Receive the Appointments to Committees Report 
 (Moved Cr. Maynard/Seconded Mayor Connelly) Carried 
 Ms Bradley describes the previous committees and reasoning for 

reorganising for the changes. 
Members confirm the Finance appointments remain the same. An 
alternate for the Strategy Working Committee will be resolved at the 
next ordinary meeting. 

 

 2. That the Māori Standing Committee recommends to SWDC 
the following appointments to: 

a. Strategy Working Committee 
i. Violet Edwards-Hina - appointment 

 

 (Moved Ms Whittaker/Seconded Ms Mikaera) Carried 
 b. Community Wellbeing Subcommittee 

i. Te Rina Kaiwai - appointment 
ii. Andrea Rutene - alternate 

 

 (Moved Mr Karauna/Seconded Ms Hooper) Carried 
   
 Discussion on moving from Stellar to SharePoint for sending out 

agenda. 
 

   
9.3 SWDC Māori Policy YouTube streaming 1:21:22 
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC2024/06) to receive the Draft Māori Policy 

Report 
 

 (Moved Ms Edwards-Hina/Seconded Mayor Connelly) Carried 
   
 Ms Ansell spoke to the report. Seeking feedback on the Policy. 

Looking to take it to the Strategy Working Committee in March. It is a 
significant update on the previous policy. Is more of a strategic 
document now. Now includes relevant legalisation and lines up with 
other policies. 

 

   
 Members discussed the importance of ensuring names are spelt 

correctly and the purakau behind place names and the importance of 
the whakapapa of the area. Suggested this research is done like in 
Wellington. The Policy needs to support the incoming ward. Using te 
reo on all Council facilities. No mention of Mana Whenua and Marae. 
Valuable to have a wānaga together to finalise it. Requested timeline 
for the forum. 

 

   
9.4 2024 Meeting Schedule of Ordinary meetings YouTube streaming 1:43:37 
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC2024/07) to: 

1. Receive the 2024 Meeting Schedule of Ordinary Meetings 
Report. 

 

 (Moved Ms Edwards-Hine/Seconded Ms Kawai) Carried 
 2. Adopt the 2024 Meeting Schedule of Ordinary meetings for 

Māori Standing committee. 
 

 (Moved Ms Mikaera/Seconded Ms Kawai) Carried 
 3. Delegate to the Chief Executive Officer the authority to alter  

6



DISCLAIMER 5  
Until confirmed as a true and correct record, at a subsequent meeting, the minutes of this meeting should not be relied on as 
to their correctness 

 

the schedule of ordinary meetings following consultation with 
the Chair. 

 (Moved Ms Mikaera/Seconded Ms Kaiwai) Carried 
   
 Members discussed holding Forums in between each of the Ordinary 

Meetings, in February, early June, September and November. 
 

   
9.6 ACTION ITEMS REPORT YouTube streaming 1:47:09 
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC2024/08) to receive the Action Items Report.  
 (Moved Ms Edwards-Hine/Seconded Ms Whittaker) Carried 
 Members discussed the Action items report.  
   
9.5 INCOME AND EXPENDITURE REPORT YouTube streaming  
 MSC RESOLVED (MSC2024/09) to receive the Income and 

Expenditure Report for the period ending 31 December 2023. 
 

 (Moved Ms Edwards-Hina/Seconded Ms Kaiwai) Carried 
   
 Members questioned what funding the Committee has.  
 Ms Bradley clarified that the Long-Term Plan sets the budgets. Those 

budgets have been drafted.  
ACITON 44: for Ms Bradley to confirm that the Māori Standing 
Committee budget is correct. 

 

   
10 MEMBERS REPORTS   
 There were no members reports.  
   
Members closed with a Karakia at 8:08 pm  
   

  
Confirmed as a true and correct record. 
  
…………………………………………………..Chairperson 

 
…………………………………………………..Date 

7



 

                  Māori Standing Committee 
        Kia Reretahi Tātau 

30 April 2024 
Agenda Item 8.1  

 

Chairperson Report 

1. Purpose 

To provide the Māori Standing Committee with a brief update on key pieces of work 
for this period. 

2. Recommendations  

Officers recommend that the committee: 

1. Receive the Chairperson Report. 

2. Accept the resignation of Pae Tū Mōkai o Tauira representative Narida Hooper 

 

3. Executive Summary 

This report provides an up-to-date summary of work undertaken by the committee 
chairperson for the previous period.  In addition, it highlights important current or 
future activities for the committee to be aware of. 

 

4. Topics 

4.1 Government Changes to Māori wards and constituencies 
 

• The bill will be introduced in May, for enactment before the end of July to align 
with the Representation Review deadline of 31 July (last legislative date for 
Council to vote on Representation options).  

• The bill will reinstate the ability to call for a poll on Māori wards post the 2025 
local election. 

• The bill will affect any Council that established Māori wards from 2021 onwards 
(45 Councils in total). 

• Around August 2024 those Councils that established a Māori ward from 2021 
onwards will need to decide the following: 

a. To rescind the decision for Māori wards and not have any for 2025 
and 2028 (optional decision) 

b. To rescind the decision for the 2025 Māori ward, but poll at the 
2025 election for 2028 (optional decision) 

c. Keep the status quo of a Māori Ward for 2025 and poll at the 2025 
election for 2028. 

8



Note – As the bill is progressed changes may be made to what has been proposed 
as outlined above. 

4.2 Enhanced Annual Planning (EAP) process for 2024/25 
• Due to the Water Services Acts Repeal Bill which gained Royal Assent on

February 16th 2024, SWDC has opted to defer the development of their Long-
term Plan (LTP) for a year to give time to clarify future direction on such things
as roading and water and identify clearly how change will take place.

• Activities included in the EAP for 2024/25 will help inform the next LTP (to be
produced 2025) particularly around the level of services and budgets that will
be proposed.

• The consultation process is underway closing May 5th.

4.3 General 

Resignation of Pae Tū Mōkai o Tauira representative Narida Hooper 
• Effective April 30th, 2024.

See Appendix 1 – resignation of Pae Tū Mōkai o Tauira representative Narida Hooper

SWDC Pou Māori role 
• The process of recruiting to the vacant Pou Māori role has been underway.

Initially there were two successful applicants looking at job sharing.  However,
unfortunately one person has now pulled out.  Contract discussions with the
remaining person is now occurring.

Waihinga bridge name being corrected 
• This has been raised again with Janice Smith, SWDC CE.  The previous council’s

CE was going to sort with Waka Kotahi.  The MSC need to discuss the correct
name and the exact bridge that is being discussed.

Matakitaki a Kupe – paper road 
• It is to be noted, that at the recent Ngāti Hinewaka me ōna Hapū Karanga

Charitable Trust AGM the issue of the paper road was brought up.  While there
has been a sign put up on the gate to these blocks, vehicle and four-wheel
drives continue to drive and desecrate wāhi tapu sites on private property as
there is no markings to identify the paper road.

See Appendix 2 – Māori Standing Committee Annual Plan Submission 2023. 

Written by: Andrea Rutene, Māori Standing Committee Chairperson  

9



Appendix 1 – resignation of Pae Tū Mōkai o 
Tauira representative Narida Hooper 
  

10



11



Appendix 2 – Māori Standing Committee 
Annual Plan Submission 2023 
 

12



13



14



15



 
 

Māori Standing Committee 
  Kia Reretahi Tātau 

 30 April 2024 
Agenda Item: 9.1 

SWDC Pou Māori Report 

1. Purpose 

To provide the Māori Standing Committee with an update on the program of work and 
key focus areas to date.   This report aims to ensure transparent and inclusive decision-
making processes while fostering a strong partnership between the Council and iwi 
Māori.  

2. Recommendations  

Officers recommend that the Committee: 

1. Receive the Pou Māori Report. 

 

3. Executive Summary 

To ensure the Māori Standing Committee are informed of the business of Council in 
particular the activities that may impact on tangata whenua albeit positive or 
challenging.  To ensure members can make informed decisions.  To intermittently 
provide the Māori Standing Committee with an update of my workplan and areas of 
focus to date. 
 

4. Background 

The Māori Standing Committee advocated for the creation of Māori Liaison as part of 
their submission to the 2021-2031 Long-Term Plan. 

 

5. Discussion 

5.1 Māori Wards 
 
As noted in Andrea’s report the government has repealed the bill and will reinstate a 
poll.  My hope is that the decision to ‘keep status quo’ is the collective thinking of the 
elected members as they continue their journey to be best Te Tiriti partners to tangata 
whenua. 
 

16



5.2 Enhanced Annual Plan 
 
Enhanced Annual Plan (EAP) is the next off the rank, and as Andrea has noted as a 
consequence to governments action to repeal the Water Services Act (Three Waters), 
they have given Councils an option to defer the LTP for one year in exchange for an 
EAP. Enhanced Annual Plan 2024-25 - SWDC SWDC 
 
Since the Council’s current Long-Term Plan (LTP) was written in 2021, the economic 
environment we operate in has shifted significantly. The increase in rates forecast in 
the LTP for 2024-25 was 10.97%. However, the costs of services the Council provides to 
the community have increased dramatically since then. 

The consultation document proposes a 15.3% total rates increase for the 2024-25 
financial year. This takes into account high levels of inflation, interest and insurance 
costs, along with core operational investment in roading and maintaining current 
levels of water investment. 

This year, we’re asking our communities to have their say on the proposals which are 
outlined across 3 decisions: 

 How much should we spend on operating and maintaining our water 

services? 

 How should we charge for water use? 

 How should we pay for the replacement of our assets? 

 
It’s important for South Wairarapa communities to have their say about the proposals 
included in the consultation document.  

Full details can be found on our website with the following key information: 

• Consultation Document - SWDC Annual Plan 24 25 Consultation electronic-
V2.pdf 

• Online submission - South Wairarapa District Council 2024-25 Enhanced Annual 
Plan Consultation Survey (surveymonkey.com) 

• Frequently asked questions sheet (FAQ) - FAQ-Enhanced-AP-24-25-FINAL-
V2.pdf (swdc.govt.nz) 

• Supporting financial documents - 2024-25 Enhanced Annual Plan consultation - 
SWDC SWDC 

 

South Wairarapa District Council would like to hear from our communities about which 
proposals are best for them and welcome comments on other areas we are focusing 
on. 

17



18



Appendix 1: Enhanced Annual Plan 2024-25 
 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



PAGE 30      | 

Submission and feedback form

SUBMISS ION AND FEEDBACK FORM

Name Phone

Email Organisation

Address

Do you wish to speak to your submission at the 
public hearings scheduled for 15 & 16 May 2024?

□ Yes (in person)

□ Yes (online)

□ No

Is your home or place of residence either 
connected or able to be connected to  
water services?

□ Yes

□ No

It is a requirement that all submissions are made available to the public. As a result, your name and feedback will be available 
to the public on the Council’s website following consultation. However, contact details will remain private.

FIRST DECISION
How much should we spend on operating and maintaining our water services?
More information about this on page 8

□ $5.61m: Maintain the current level of funding with an allowance for unavoidable extra costs. 

□ $6.33m: Maintain the current level of funding with additional priorities to increase planning and 
resilience. This is an additional 4.1% added to the proposed total rates increase.

□ $7.44m: The highest level of investment for planning and resilience. This is an additional 7.3% added to 
the proposed total rates increase. 

Do you have any additional comments about the first decision?

SECOND DECISION
How should we charge for water use?
More information about this on page 18

□ Maintain the current allocated quota (350 m3) of water provided to all users, and the current user
charges ($1.84 per m3) for litres of water used above this.

□ Reduce the allocated quota to 250m3 of water provided to all users (household or commercial) and
increase the excess water charges to $2.50 per m3 for water used above this.

49



PAGE 31      | 

Submission and feedback form

Do you have any additional comments about the second decision?

THIRD DECISION
How should we pay for the replacement of our assets?
More information about this on page 22

□ Manage debt through cashflow analysis and only borrow what is needed as needed. Continue to fund
an appropriate level of depreciation to fund future renewals.

□ Continue to charge rates to fund both a loan reserve (to pay for the existing assets) and depreciation
(for future replacement of the assets).

Do you have any additional comments about the third decision?

Rating review feedback
Do you have any feedback that has not been raised previously? 

More information about this on page 27

Do you have any additional comments on other areas we’re focusing on?

Thank you for taking the time provide feedback about the Enhanced Annual Plan.

SUBMISS ION AND FEEDBACK FORM

50



PAGE 32      | 

Glossary 

Kuputaka

GLOSSARY 

Allocated water quota
Each South Wairarapa household connected to the water supply pays an amount of their rates specifically 
for serviced water and is given an allocation of 350m3 – or 350,000 litres – of water per connection 
annually. All users, household or commercial, pay the same rate and get the same annual allocation.  

Amenities
Includes the land, parks, playgrounds, senior housing, campgrounds, venues, toilets and cemeteries, 
that we provide and care for on behalf of our communities.  

Assumptions
These are forecasts based on a variety of trends which enable Council to predict future needs in  
our district.  They can be regarding population, the economy, climate change, or political trends.  
The assumptions we prepared for the 2021-31 LTP have limited value considering the major economic  
and climate upheaval we have experienced over recent years. The Enhanced AP must use the assumptions 
in year four of the 2021-31 LTP which require statements as to why we are making changes. 

NOTE: we had prepared an Environmental Scan for the 2024-34 LTP that considered some of the very high 
level assumptions we are now facing and can be found on our website here: https://swdc.govt.nz/wp-
content/uploads/DCAgendaPack-27Sept23-Part-3.pdf 

Better-off funding
Central government provided an opportunity for councils to apply for funding during the initial process 
of water reform to be used to improve amenities and outcomes for our communities.  

Capital investment
Sometimes referred to as capital expenditure or capex, capital investment is money Council spends on 
new assets or upgrading existing assets. It includes critical infrastructure like roads, pump stations, and 
water pipes. It does not include operational expenditure. 

Capital value
The total value of your property including all improvements like buildings, vines, and fruit producing trees.

Cashflow analysis 
A process to enable good financial management by looking at the cash that’s available to pay bills and 
make purchases over a specific period. It informs decision making about opportunities for investment  
in assets and services and the financial stability of the organisation.  

Debt limit
A limit of how much debt Council can have, described as a percentage of Council's operational revenue. 
Our financial strategy must include a statement about the quantified limits on borrowing (Section 101A(3)
(b)(i) of the Local Government Act (LGA)). Councils can choose what limits to set but it is common to 
set the limit at the same level as the Local Government Funding Agency, which is 175% of revenue for a 
Council without a credit rating and 280% of revenue for a Council with a credit rating. 

51



PAGE 33      | 

Depreciation
Depreciation is an accepted accounting method of spreading the cost of assets over their useful life. 

Enhanced Annual Plan (Enhanced AP) 
Council was due to produce a Long-Term Plan (LTP) for the 2024-34 period that would forecast our 
budgets and activities over the next ten years. Noting the significant changes ahead for local government, 
legislation was passed on 13 February 2023 that enabled councils to opt to complete an Enhanced Annual 
Plan instead of an LTP (Sections 48-53 of the Water Services Acts Repeal Bill). 

The media release for this decision is on our website here: https://swdc.govt.nz/media-releases/south-
wairarapa-district-council-opts-for-enhanced-annual-plan-for-2024-25/  

Growth planning
The process for planning for future population and economic changes to ensure that Council decision 
making considers the housing, infrastructure, transport, and amenities needs of future communities in 
our district.  

Inflation
Describes the rise of average prices across the economy meaning that money is losing its value, meaning 
that you can buy less with the same amount of money. 

Infrastructure
Usually refers to major public assets like roads, bridges, water supplies, sewers, electrical supply, and 
telecommunications. Social infrastructure also includes assets to help improve people’s lives and 
wellbeing, like community centres, libraries, parks, walking and cycling trails, and playgrounds. 

Investigations
Locating the cause or causes of failures with a view to improve the performance or life of equipment 
or assets. 

Land value
The value of your property excluding any improvements like buildings, vines, and fruit producing trees.

LGCI
Describes the Local Government Cost Index, which is an alternate inflation factor for Local Government 
based on activities Councils undertake rather then the standard basket of household goods that is used 
for the Consumer Price Index (CPI). 

Operating expenditure
Also called opex, is the money council spends on delivering the wide range of services to our  
communities like fixing potholes, repairing leaks, maintaining our buildings, and running our libraries.  
It also includes costs that may not be visible to the public like insurances, depreciation, and tax. It does 
not include capital expenditure. 

Planned maintenance
Planned or preventative maintenance is a maintenance approach focused on minimising unplanned 
equipment downtime and returning to uptime as soon as possible and is carried out in a planned way.

GLOSSARY 

52



PAGE 34      | 

Reactive maintenance
Responding to unplanned asset failures such as burst water mains, flooding and sewer overflows. 

Renewal
Renewal is capital investment (expenditure) that relates to the replacement of existing assets.

Special Purpose Road
This is a local road or carriageway that for a number of years received very high funding assistance rates 
from the NZTA.  Some special purpose roads are local roads that currently receive a higher funding 
assistance rate than other local roads managed by SWDC. 

Targeted rate
A specific rate charged to a group of ratepayers who receive a service e.g. water rates for those who can 
be connected to water services.

Total rates
When we calculate a proposed rates increase, we do so based on the total rates collected for the whole 
of the district. Therefore, if the total rates required to deliver all services across the district needs to 
increase from $30m to $33m, this would be a total rates increase of $3m or 10%. This does not mean that 
individual rates will increase by 10% across all types of properties. Your individual rates will depend on 
other factors, like the type of property you own, whether you can be connected to water services, or have 
your rubbish collected by council. It gives one generic measure of rates increases. 

Water race
Water races are small canal-like waterways found on some properties in the Wairarapa. Water is diverted 
into them and animals drink from them. Over time, they’ve become part of the ecosystem around them – 
providing homes for fish and aquatic plants, along with vital drinking water for stock.

GLOSSARY 

53



Māori Standing Committee 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

30 April 2024 
Agenda Item 9.2 

Appointment to the Assurance, Risk and Finance Committees 

1. Purpose

To allow the Māori Standing Committee to appoint a member to the Assurance, Risk 
and Finance Committee after the resignation of Pae Tū Mōkai o Tauira representative 
Narida Hooper.  

2. Recommendations

Officers recommend that the Māori Standing Committee: 

1. Receive the Appointment to the Assurance, Risk and Finance Committee
Report.

2. Consider the appointment of a Māori Standing Committee representative to
the Assurance, Risk and Finance Committee.

3. Background

Each year Council must consider the proposed structure and schedule for its Council 
and Committee meetings for the following calendar year. On 22 November 2023, 
Council reviewed and adopted a new committee structure and committee Terms of 
Reference (TOR) for the 2022-2025 triennium. Membership on the Finance Committee 
was transferred to the Assurance, Risk and Finance Committee. Through the TOR, the 
Assurance, Risk and Finance Committee provides an opportunity for the appointment 
of a Māori Standing Committee representative with voting rights.  

4. Committee Establishment

The Mayor has the power to establish committees and appoint the chairperson of each 
committee under section 41A of the Local Government Act 2002. Council can appoint 
representatives from the Māori Standing Committee who represent mana whenua and 
the wider Māori community to committees with voting rights. These members would 
undertake the same preparatory duties as Councillors and contribute to discussions 
with their expertise and knowledge. Providing voting rights on Committees to these 
appointees increases the authenticity of the appointment and strengthens 
participation in decision making processes. Appointees have the opportunity to be 
seen as form of representation on these committees.  Being an appointee would 
require dedicated resource over the triennium, including preparation for and 
attendance at regular meetings held during the regular business hours. 

54



5. Committee Structure

The Māori Standing Committee may appoint a representative, with voting rights, to 
the following Committees of Council: 

a. Assurance, Risk and Finance Committee

i. Meeting dates: Wednesday 22 May; Wednesday 14 August,
Wednesday 23 October.

The TOR for each of the above committee are set out in full on our website, SWDC-
Terms-of-Reference-Amended-27Mar24.pdf The TOR includes the purpose, key 
responsibilities, delegations, membership, quorum, and meeting frequency. 

6. Options

The Māori Standing Committee has the option to appoint a representative to the 
Assurance, Risk and Finance Committee or not appoint a representative.  

7. Financial Considerations

There is no budget allocation available for renumeration of appointees to the 
Assurance, Risk and Finance Committee for the remainder of the 2023/2024 financial 
year. This will be reviewed as part of the upcoming Long Term Plan. The Māori 
Standing Committee has the option to allocate funds from within their existing 
budget for renumeration of appointed members. The recommended sitting fee for 
appointed members to attend committee meetings is $160.00. This sitting fee would 
be paid in addition to Māori Standing Committee member salary. 

Contact Officer: Robyn Ramsden, Community Governance Advisor 

Reviewed By: Nicki Ansell, Lead Advisor, Democracy & Engagement 

55



South Wairarapa District Council 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

30 April 2024 
Agenda Item: 9.3 

Lake Ferry Holiday Park Tender 

1. Purpose 

To inform the Māori Standing Committee (MSC) of officers’ intention to tender the 
lease of the Lake Ferry Holiday Park and seek guidance from the MSC.  

2. Recommendations  

Officers recommend that the Committee: 

1. Receive the ‘Lake Ferry Holiday Park Tender” Report and 

2. Provide advice on what officers should consider through the tender process. 

3. Background 

SWDC is the custodian of several small recreation reserves close to Lake Ōnoke. 
Management of these reserves is covered by the Coastal Reserves Management Plan. 
Part of one of these reserves has been leased out for the operation of a camping 
ground known as the Lake Ferry Holiday Park since the 1970s. 
 
The camping ground is currently being operated under a one-year licence which 
expires on 30 June 2024. It is officers’ intention to tender a longer-term lease to 
operate the camping ground commencing 1 July 2024. 

4. Discussion 

Given the land on which the camping ground sits is of cultural, spiritual, and historic 
significance to Māori, officers seek the guidance of the MSC before commencing this 
process. On the advice of the Principal Advisor, Māori, officers have also contacted the 
Ngāti Kahungunu ki Wairarapa Tamaki nui-a-Rua Treaty Settlement Trust. 
 
 

Contact Officer: Sarah Pearson-Coats, Property Portfolio Advisor 
Reviewed By: Stefan Corbett, Group Manager Partnerships & Operations 

56



 

Māori Standing Committee 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

30 April 2024 
Agenda Item 9.4 

Income & Expenditure Report 

1. Purpose 

To present the Māori Standing Committee with the most recent Income and 
Expenditure Statements. 

2. Recommendations  

Officers recommend that the Committee:  

1. Receive the Income & Expenditure Report for the period ending 31 March 2024. 

3. Executive Summary 

The Income and Expenditure Statement for the period ending 31 March 2024 is 
attached in Appendix 1.   

4. Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Income & Expenditure Statement for the period ending 31 March 2024. 

 

Contact Officer: Hayley McDonald, Assistant Accountant  
Reviewed By: Charly Clarke, Acting General Manager, Finance  
 

57



 

 

Appendix 1 – Income and Expenditure 
Report for the Period Ending 31 March 

2024 

58



Executive Summary - MSC Funding

Grant funding of $65,080 established in 2020 has been allocated to 

four pou. Tautoko Whakapapa

Tautoko - support

Te Taiao - the environment Allocation 13,000        Allocation 12,800                

Whakapapa - family Spent to 1 July 2023 7,867          Spent to 1 July 2023 -                       

Marae Wawata - Inspiration

Balance 5,133          Balance 12,800                

Te Taiao Marae Wawata

Allocation 12,280        Allocation 27,000                

Spent to 1 July 2023 3,431          Spent to 1 July 2023 24,948                

Balance 8,849          Balance 2,052                  

Reserve funds available at 1 July 2023 28,834        

Within the current budget there are two budget lines that feed into 

the reserve

Actual Budget Funds available

Grants 2,200          4,700       2,500          

Actual made up of

Income Community & Youth Fund 5,000-        

Grant payment made 7,200        

Community development fund -               11,500     11,500       

Total funds available current year 14,000       

Total funds available to MSC to allocate to grants/projects 42,834       

59



Māori Standing Committee 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

30 April 2024 
Agenda Item 9.5

Financial Assistance Report 

1. Purpose

To present the Māori Standing Committee with applications received requesting 
financial assistance.  

2. Recommendations

Officers recommend that the Committee: 

1. Receive the Financial Assistance Report.

2. Consider the application from Whaiora Whanui Trust for $  for the purpose 
of supporting the Costal Classic Ki O Rahi Tournament.

3. Consider the application from Kuranui College Adventure Racing Team for
$2,000 to support cost of transport, vehicle costs, equipment, accommodation,
and meals.

4. Consider the application from Hau Ariki Marae for $17,710 to purchase sleeping
mattresses for the Marae.

3. Executive Summary

The Māori Standing Committee has received three funding applications for 
consideration.  

4. Background

The committee has delegated authority to make financial decisions within the confines 
of the allocated and available budget and the Board operates its grant fund in 
accordance with the Council’s Grants Policy.  

The Committee is allocated funding for grants through the Long Term Plan/ Annual 
Plan. The current funding amount is available on the Income & Expenditure Statement. 

5. Prioritisation

5.1 Te Tiriti obligations 
Engagement considered not required in this case. 

5.2 Strategic alignment  
How does this align with strategic outcomes? 

60



☐Spatial Plan 
☒Long Term Plan 
☒Annual Plan 
 
Allocation for Grant funding is approved through the Annual Plan/Long Term Plan and 
supports the social, environmental, economic, and cultural outcomes.  

6. Discussion 

Under the current Grants Policy the key eligibility criteria for Māori Standing 
Committee grants are as follows: 

1. A successful organisation will be required to spend the grant received within 6 
months of receipt. Should an extension of time be required, a written request is 
to be made to the Māori Standing Committee (MSC) chairperson.  
 

2. An MSC Accountability form together with evidence of the expenditure is 
required within 3 months of a grant being spent (provide all invoices & 
receipts).  
 

3. All questions must be completed.  
 

4. Applications to a maximum value of $1,500 will be considered (GST will be 
added to grants approved for GST registered applicants). 
 

5. All grants will be considered on a case by case basis and are required to be 
submitted for consideration at least 10 days prior to the MSC meetings. 
 

6. An organisation is eligible for one grant per year from the MSC Grants fund. 
 

7. Applicants will be invited back to present to the MSC after completing the 
activity to share their experience. 
 

The Grants Policy sets out further criteria. 

6.1.1. Application from Whaiora Whanui Trust 
The application from Wairarapa Whanau Trust meets the criteria for funding, although 
the amount exceeds the typical grant limit of $1,500. The application will be provided 
to members in confidence.  

6.1.2. Application from Kuranui College Adventure Racing Team 
The application from Kuranui College Adventure Racing Team meets the criteria for 
funding, although the amount exceeds the typical grant limit of $1,500. An email 
received from a member of the team asked for the application to be considered by the 
Māori Standing Committee. The applicants have confirmed they are applying for other 
SWDC funding; Community & Youth Fund and the Community Boards. The application 
will be provided to members in confidence.  

61



6.1.3. Application from Hau Ariki Marae 
The application from Hau Ariki Marae meets the criteria for funding, although the 
amount exceeds the typical grant limit of $1,500. Hau Ariki Marae applied to the Pain 
Farm Fund through the Martinborough Community Board (MCB), however the MCB 
considered that the application be transferred to the MSC. The applicant has agreed. 
The application will be provided to members in confidence. 

7. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements 

7.1  Significant risk register 
There are no significant risks identified. 

7.2 Policy implications 
Allocation decisions are made in accordance with Councils Grants Policy.  

7.3  Communications and engagement 
The decisions are considered as low significance as determined by the Councils 
Significance and Engagement Policy. 

7.4 Partnerships 
Have you completed a communications plan for the work described/project to 
engage/communicate with partners/key stakeholders e.g. Waka Kotahi, Kainga Ora, 
community groups, particular individuals etc? 

☐Yes ☒No 

If no, is a communications plan required? 

☐Yes ☒No 

8. Financial Considerations 

In accordance with the Financial Delegations Policy, a resolution is required to allocate 
this fund.  
 

Contact Officer: Robyn Ramsden, Community Governance Advisor  
Reviewed By: Nicki Ansell, Lead Advisor – Community & Governance  

62



 

Māori Standing Committee 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

30 January 2024 
Agenda Item 9.6 

Action Items Report 

1. Purpose 

To present the Committee with updates on actions and resolutions. 

2. Recommendations  

Officers recommend that the Committee: 

1. Receive the Action Items Report. 

3. Executive Summary 

Action items from recent meetings are presented to the Māori Standing Committee for 
information.  The Chair may ask Council officers for comment and all members may ask 
Council officers for clarification and information through the Chair. 
 
If the action has been completed between meetings it will be shown as ‘actioned’ for 
one meeting and then will be remain in a master register but no longer reported on.   

4. Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Action Items to 30 January 2024 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Robyn Ramsden, Community Governance Advisor 
Reviewed By: Amanda Bradley, General Manager – Democracy & Engagement

63



 

 

Appendix 1 – Action Items to 30 
January 2024 

64



65




